
 
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Lakeland City Commission Conference Room, Lakeland City Hall  
 

Wednesday, October 12, 2016 
8:30 a.m. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Action Required 
Call to Order  

• Roll Call 
 

1. Proposed FY 16-17 Program of Projects / David Persaud None 
 

2. Public Comments  None 
 

3. Adoption of the FY 16-17 Program of Projects / David Persaud    Approval 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING 
OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM # 1 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Proposed FY 16-17 Program of Projects 
 
Presenter: David Persaud 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: Annually the District Staff is required to develop a 

Program of Projects (POP), hold a Public Hearing, and 
obtain Board of Directors approval.  The Public Hearing 
has been advertised in the Lakeland Ledger and the POP 
is provided at the attachment. 

  
 This fiscal year the POP reflects both the District and the 

Polk County (Winter Haven) POP Funding. 
 
  
Attachments: FY 16-17 Program of Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING 
OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #2  

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Public Comments 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: Open forum for the public to address any comments, 

questions, or concerns related to the FY 16-17 Program 
of Projects. 

 
Attachments: None 
 
  
 
 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING 
OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #3 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Adoption of the FY 16-17 Program of Projects 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 
 
Recommended  
Action: Board of Directors approve the proposed FY 16-17 

Program of Projects. 
 
Summary: Annually the District Staff is required to develop a 

Program of Projects (POP), hold a Public Hearing, 
and obtain Board of Directors approval.   

 
 Approval of the Program of Projects is a pre-requisite 

to obtaining FTA funding. 
 
 Urbanized Area Formula Program (5307) 
 
 The Urbanized Area Formula Funding Program 

makes Federal resources available to urbanized areas 
for transit capital and operating assistance areas and 
for transportation related planning.  The LAMTD and 
Polk County Transit Services FY 2016-17 allocation 
totaled: 

  LAMTD $2,858,931 
  PCTS      $2,349,030   
 
 
Attachments: FY 16-17 Program of Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #3 – CONT. 

 
 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District / Polk County Transit Services                                                   
FY 2016-2017 Proposed Program of Projects (POP) Funding 

 
 

               
 

               
Projects  FTA Total Program Description 
Transportation Operations 
Urban Fixed - LAMTD  $ 1,958,630 $ 1,958,630 Fixed Route Operations 
Urban Fixed – WHAT $ 1,610,520 $ 1,610,520 Fixed Route Operations 
Total $ 3,569,150 $ 3,569,150  

 
Capital Projects     
Section 5307 Lakeland Cap $ 652,877 $ 652,877 Preventative Maintenance (1) 
Section 5307 WH Cap   $ 536,840 $ 536,840 Preventative Maintenance (1) 
Section 5339 Cap Lakeland $ 247,424 $ 247,424  Capital Bus Purchase  
Section 5339 WH $ 201,670 $ 201,670 Capital Bus Purchase  
Total  $ 1,638,811 $ 1,638,811   

Total Program FY2016-17 $5,207,961 $5,207,961 
  

 
(1) Includes Salaries and Wages, Benefits and/or Services, Parts, and 

Facilities 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd. 
Wednesday, October 12, 2016, at 8:30 a.m. 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Call to Order for LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting / Roll Call 
     
**GEM Award Presentation to Ruby Kimble / Dean Kirkland-McMillan              

       
1.    Approval of Minutes          Approval 

 
2.   Public Comments           None 
 
3.  Financial Matters / David Persaud                                                                                       
        (a)   Financial Statement                                    None 
        (b)   PCTS Financial Statement                               Approval 
        (c)    Contract Award Approval - Park n Ride AQ 555             Approval 
 
4.   Operations / Bill Knieriem 
        (a)   January Route Changes – 1st Approval Pending Public Outreach          Approval 
 
5.   Government & Community Relations 
       (a) “The Swan” Presentation               None 
       (b) Arts in Transit Presentation               None 
        
6.  Safety & Security / Dean Kirkland-McMillan 
      (a)  Hurricane Matthew Report              None 
      (b)  Position Approval – Safety Specialist             Approval  
 
7.  Executive Update / Tom Phillips                           
       (a)  Activity Calendar                               None 
       (b)  UAP & Ridership Report              None 
       (c)  State of the District Presentation             None 
       (d)  District Update               None 
        
 8. Other Business                 
 
 
Adjournment 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GEM NOTIFICATION 
Nominated Employee Name: Ruby Kimble 

 

August 2016 

Ruby Kimble was conducting an address check for a resident in East Polk County, the customer 
had applied for transportation, one of the steps in this process is for a supervisor to conduct 
an address check to make sure the address is accessible for the buses, after Ruby made 
contact with the customer, he advised that he was in need of immediate transportation for 
medical and nutritional needs: 

a. Ruby called intake @ the call center and requested  that the intake application be 
expedited, Sheri Carlton worked to get it processed  

b. The customer informed Ruby that He did not have any food, Ruby provided food for the 
customer, and she also asked other employees to bring in any non-perishable items that 
they could spare, she made up boxes of food and delivered them to this customer, he 
was extremely grateful. 

This is truly going the extra mile 

 
Nominated by : Dean Kirkland-McMillan 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #1 

Agenda Item: 

Presenter: 

Approval of September 21, 2016, LAMTD Board 
of Directors Meeting Minutes 
Marcy Harrison 

Recommended 
Action: Board of Directors approve the Minutes of the 

September 21, 2016, LAMTD Board of Directors 
Meeting. 

Attachments: September 21, 2016, Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2016 

 

 
 

   
Directors: 
City of Lakeland Commissioner John Hall - Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey – Vice Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner Jim Malless - Secretary 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker 
 
Executive Director:  Tom Phillips 
Executive Assistant:  Marcy Harrison 
 
Call to Order  
 4:00p.m. by Chairman John Hall 
 
 
Roll Call 

Present                                 
Commissioner Malless                            

 Commissioner Lindsey 
 Commissioner Salvage 
 Commissioner Walker 
 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 
Approval request for the approval of the August 10, 2016 LAMTD Board of Director meeting minutes. 
 
   “Approval August 10, 2016 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes” 
        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Agenda Item #2 – Board Action 
None at this time 
 
 
Agenda Item #3 – Finances / David Persaud, CFO 
David Persaud, CFO presented to the Board the items listed below: 
 
a)   LAMTD Financials 

FY 2015-2016 
Year to Date July 31, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 83% $9,211,118 $6,716,890 73% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 83% $8,603,059 $7,015,424 82% $10.3 Million 

 
 
 
 



 

REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through July 31, 2016 totaled $6.7 million or 73% of the YTD budget. 
 

Farebox and contract revenues reflect 87% of budgeted revenues through July 31, 2016.  The revenues are 
under budget by 13% due to several reasons, contractual revenues from RAMCO $93,000 received and contract 
revenue under budget $140,000 for UAP (Poly Technic, City of Bartow and Lakeland) that lags three months. 
Farebox revenues are under budget $155,495 due to decline in ridership of 16% for fixed route and 39% for 
Paratransit Services. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.7 million or 101% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million. 
Revenues are over the budget since only 95% of the taxes are budgeted. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.6 million is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The second 
billing covered the second quarter ending March 31, 2016.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the 
services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The year-to-date grant revenue totaled $787,000 
with the remaining balance to be accrued. 

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income totaled $124,000 or 72% of YTD budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is over budget since other reimbursements are included. 
 

• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 
cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXPENSES: 



 

The total expenses year-to-date through July 31, 2016 totaled $7.02 million or 82% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of July 31, 2016 these expenses totaled 
$5.1 million or 94% of the YTD budget of $5.4 million due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $231,000 or 56% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $49,000 or 53% of the YTD budget, a favorable variance.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $329,000 or 38% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $489,000 under budget by 33% due to decrease use of parts and supplies, a 

favorable variance 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $34,000 under over 6% offset with revenues. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 
Program subscription. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $276,000, over the budget due to 

property appraiser fees and CRA fees of $139,200. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through July 31, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through July 31th the financials reflect an unfavorable actual 
variance of $298,000 due to receipt of property tax revenue at 101% level and the lagging of the FDOT and FTA 
revenues. However finance is in the process of getting reimbursed now that the FTA TrAMS system is functional and 
the JPA-FDOT agreements are in place. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
b)  PCTS Financials for the month of July 2016 
 



 

Revenue 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues            
FTA 5307 Grant  $         1,125,545  17%  $        937,954   $                  -  0% 
Fares  $            186,661  3%  $        155,551   $         98,064  63% 
PCTS  $         5,245,278  80%  $     4,371,065   $     4,371,065 100% 
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     5,464,570   $     4,469,129  82% 

      
      
      

Expenses 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor  $         3,434,803  52%  $     2,862,336   $     2,006,657  70% 
           
Contract  $            833,783  13%  $        694,819   $        476,173  69% 
            
Operating  $         2,288,898  35%  $     1,907,415   $     1,466,489  77% 
            
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     5,464,570   $     3,949,319  72% 

      
      

c)  Transportation Disadvantaged Transit Service Operators - 
 On July 20, 2016 the District issued a Request for Proposal #16-032, for qualified firms interested 

in providing ambulatory and wheelchair services to the Transportation Disadvantaged within Polk 
County and its surrounding service areas. 

 
 The solicitation was provided to the District’s registered vendors and state certified 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and/or Minority Business Enterprise (MBE). Thirty-
seven firms received notification of the posting, of which 31% were DBE firms found through the 
BizNet website. 

 
A single offer was received and evaluated on responsiveness and price. A responsibility review 
was conducted to ensure the firm was experience, adequately staffed, and understood the 
requirements as outlined in the solicitation.  
 
A review of the solicitation process was conducted in accordance with Federal Transit 
Administrations Best Practices Manual, with the findings published in the attached Memorandum. 
 
The review resulted in the firm of ElderPoint Ministries of Greater Lakeland, Inc. being 
recommended for award. 

 
                   “Approve the award of RFP 16-032 for Transportation Disadvantage Transit Service Operators to ElderPoint               

Ministries of Greater Lakeland, Inc.” 
        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Agenda Item #4 – Legal / The Darby Group 
Tim Darby presented the below items to the Board of Directors 
 



 

a)  Executive Director Employment Agreement was presented to the Board for approval. 
 
        “Approve the Executive Director Employment Agreement” 
       MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
b)  Interlocal Agreement for Countywide Transit System was presented to the Board for approval. 
  
  “Approve Interlocal Agreement for Countywide Transit System” 
       MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Agenda Item #5 – Training/Professional Development / Paul Simms 
Paul Simms presented to the Board the “Driver Observation Report”.  (Presentation attached) 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 – Employee & Labor Relations / Marcy Harrison 
Marcy Harrison presented to the Board a memorandum of understanding to the CBA, changing the current AFLAC benefit 
plan to UNUM, effective October 1, 2016. 
 
 “Approve memorandum of understanding to the CBA changing AFLAC benefit plan to UNUM” 
         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Agenda Item #7 – Executive Report 
Tom Phillips, ED presented to the Board the below items for Board approval. 
 
a)  New ITS Position -  Jr. Systems Administrator – Approval Item 
 
 This agenda item is being presented by Tom Phillips on behalf of the HR Director who is facilitating 

open enrollment for benefits. 
 
 The Information Technology Systems Department in conjunction with the Human Resources 

Director is requesting approval to add a position to the ITS Department as a result of addition ITS 
services that are necessary to provide support for countywide transit services. 

 
 This position is budget neutral and will not have a financial impact on the approved fiscal year 

2016-2017 budget.  Two positions will replace the one that was approved for the upcoming fiscal 
year. 

 
 Salary range $30,000 to $40,000 (depending on experience) 
 
 “Approve new Jr. Systems Administrator position” 
       MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
b)  LAMTD Staff Salary 25% Adjustment – Approval Item 
 The Transit Talent’s 2013 Transit Salary Survey were collected over 1600 Transit Professionals. 

The data was gathered in 2013 and covered 25 departments. 
 



 

 The report is structured by departments with the following grouping:  
  

• Base Salary – 25th percentile  
• Median (middle)  
• Mean (average) 
• 75th percentile 

 
The percentile score tells us what percent of other scores are less than the data point that is 
being investigated 
 
The 25th percentile is the point where 25% of the data set lie below their value. A percentile score 
tells us what percent of other scores are less than the data point we are investigating. 
 
An examination of the District Administrative Salaries and Wages when compared to the 2013 
Study demonstrated that to bring these salaries at the 25th percentile level will translate to $53, 
200 and with 15% ($7980) contingency will total $61,180 effective October 1, 2016. Those 
employees whose salaries and wages are adjusted will be excluded from the 2.25% budgeted 
increase in FY 2016-17. 
 
The Department of Labor issued changes that increased the salary threshold for the FLSA 
overtime exempt employees to $47,476. The new rules will effect six employees in the District. 
The law is effective December 1, 2016 and the fiscal impact is $14,390. 

 
    “Approve the administrative staff salaries and wage compensation to bring salaries and wages     

at the 25% percentile of Transit Talent Study” 
        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
c)  Executive Director Monthly Calendar and Ridership Report 
Tom Phillips, ED presented to the Board his monthly calendar (attached) and the monthly ridership report (attached). 
 
 
Agenda Item #8 – Other Business 
None at this time 
 
 
   
 
Adjournment 
 
Approved this 21th day of September, 2016. 
 
 
 
______________________________________                         _____________________________ 
Chairman – Commissioner John Hall                                            Minutes Recorder – Marcy Harrison 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Public Comments  
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #3(a) 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: August 31, 2016 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 
 FY 2015-16 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date August 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
Year to Date August 31, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 92% $9,767,394 $10,090,426 103% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 92% $9,463,365 $7,788,956 82% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through August 31, 2016 totaled $10.1 million or 103% of the YTD budget. 
 

Farebox and contract revenues reflect 86% of budgeted revenues through August 31, 2016.  The revenues are 
under budget by 14% due to several reasons, contractual revenues from RAMCO $93,000 received and contract 
revenue under budget $142,841 for UAP (Poly Technic, City of Bartow and Lakeland) that lags three months. 
Farebox revenues are under budget $172,201 due to decline in ridership of 16% for fixed route and 37% for 
Paratransit Services. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.7 million or 101% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million. 
Revenues are over the budget since only 95% of the taxes are budgeted. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.6 million is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The second 
billing covered the second quarter ending March 31, 2016.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the 
services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The year-to-date grant revenue totaled $1.4 
million or 85% with the remaining balance to be accrued. 

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million with 100% recieved.  This grant is also on 

a cash basis which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since 
most of the grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is 
received at the end of the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income totaled $132,000 or 83% of YTD budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is over budget since other reimbursements are included. 
 

• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 
cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 



 
 
 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date August 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through August 31, 2016 totaled $7.8 million or 82% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of August 31, 2016 these expenses totaled 
$5.5 million or 92% of the YTD budget of $5.9 million due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $254,000 or 67% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $50,000 or 39% of the YTD budget, a favorable variance.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $416,000 or 52% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $582,000 under budget by 12% due to decrease use of parts and supplies, a 

favorable variance 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $34,000 under over 6% offset with revenues. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 
Program subscription. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $276,000, over the budget due to 

property appraiser fees and CRA fees of $139,200. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through August 31, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through August 31st the financials reflect a favorable actual 
variance of $2.3 million due to receipt of property tax revenue at 101% level and FDOT and FTA revenues.  

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Riership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 



10/11/2016   1:50 PM \\CC-FileServer\user\mharrison\1 -LAMTD Meetings\2016 LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting\10) October 12, 2016\August FY '16.xlsx

MONTH OF  (SoRE 6/3/15)

 

$'s % $'s %
REVENUES:

15 Farebox/Pass Sales 65,526$               82,228$               (16,703)$              -20% 732,311$             904,512$             (172,201)$            -19% 986,740$             
17 Contract Income (UAP) 31,809$               27,787$               4,022$                 14% 162,812$             305,653$             (142,841)$            -47% 333,440$             

17b Other Contract Revenue 12,532$               42,799$               (30,268)$              -71% 542,898$             470,791$             72,107$               15% 513,590$             
18 Miscellaneous Income 159$                    833$                    (674)$                   -81% 60,477$               9,167$                 51,310$               560% 10,000$               
19 Advertising Revenues 7,549$                 14,500$               (6,951)$                -48% 131,989$             159,500$             (27,511)$              -17% 174,000$             
20 Investment/Interest Income (net) 2,456$                 93$                      2,363$                 2532% 16,664$               1,027$                 15,638$               1523% 1,120$                 
21 Ad Valorum Income, net 7,749$                 7,749$                 -$                         0% 3,686,936$          3,648,360$          38,576$               1% 3,648,360$          
22 FDOT Operating Grant 609,136$             136,799$             472,336$             345% 1,395,930$          1,504,791$          (108,861)$            -7% 1,641,590$          
23 Federal Operating Grant 2,611,507$          218,673$             2,392,834$          1094% 2,665,900$          2,405,407$          260,494$             11% 2,624,080$          
24 Charitable Contributions -$                         -$                         -$                         0% -$                         -$                         -$                         0% -$                         
25 Cost Recovery -$                         -$                         -$                         0% 12,958$               -$                         12,958$               0% -$                         
27 Bartow Express -$                         4,402$                 (4,402)$                -100% 42,753$               48,418$               (5,665)$                -12% 52,820$               

27b PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 31,494$               28,161$               3,333$                 12% 638,798$             309,769$             329,029$             106% 337,930$             
Reserve

TOTAL REVENUES 3,379,916$          564,025$             2,815,891$          499% 10,090,426$        9,767,394$          323,032$             3% 10,323,670$        

ELIGIBLE EXPENSES:
32 Salaries 323,718$             362,436$             (38,718)$              -11% 3,761,745$          3,986,801$          (225,055)$            -6% 4,349,237$          
33 Employee Benefits 177,672$             179,581$             (1,909)$                -1% 1,747,192$          1,975,388$          (228,196)$            -12% 2,154,968$          
34 Advertising Fees - Admin 5,828$                 1,008$                 4,820$                 478% 8,895$                 11,092$               (2,197)$                -20% 12,100$               
35 Professional & Technical Serv. 23,531$               34,567$               (11,036)$              -32% 253,499$             380,233$             (126,734)$            -33% 414,800$             
36 Contract Maintenance Service 6,687$                 7,750$                 (1,063)$                -14% 54,072$               85,250$               (31,178)$              -37% 93,000$               
37 Other Services 6,223$                 11,546$               (5,323)$                -46% 49,838$               127,004$             (77,166)$              -61% 138,550$             
38 Fuel & Lubricants (net) 71,914$               73,428$               (1,514)$                -2% 415,478$             807,703$             (392,224)$            -49% 881,130$             
39 Freight 597$                    25$                      572$                    2288% 3,632$                 275$                    3,357$                 1221% 300$                    
40 Repair & Maintenance Admin Bldg (99)$                     1,000$                 (1,099)$                -110% 5,542$                 11,000$               (5,458)$                -50% 12,000$               
42 Materials & Supplies 69,737$               60,451$               9,286$                 15% 581,633$             664,959$             (83,326)$              -13% 725,410$             
43 Utilities/Telephone - Admin 8,991$                 9,208$                 (217)$                   -2% 105,087$             101,292$             3,795$                 4% 110,500$             
44 Physical Damage Insurance 2,311$                 2,154$                 157$                    7% 22,967$               23,696$               (729)$                   -3% 25,850$               
45 Liab & Prop Damage Insurance 21,309$               18,250$               3,059$                 17% 198,952$             200,750$             (1,798)$                -1% 219,000$             
46 Other Corporate Insurance -$                         58$                      (58)$                     -100% 1,010$                 642$                    368$                    57% 700$                    
48 Dues & Subscriptions 581$                    1,529$                 (948)$                   -62% 40,199$               16,821$               23,378$               139% 18,350$               
49 Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 10,925$               6,086$                 4,839$                 80% 76,272$               66,944$               9,328$                 14% 73,030$               
50 Service Charges 1,384$                 3,483$                 (2,100)$                -60% 14,592$               38,317$               (23,724)$              -62% 41,800$               
51 Office Expense 5,647$                 4,096$                 1,551$                 38% 62,753$               45,057$               17,696$               39% 49,153$               
52 Advertising & Promotion 151$                    3,033$                 (2,882)$                -95% 34,414$               33,367$               1,048$                 3% 36,400$               
53 Miscellaneous Expenses -$                         1,850$                 (1,850)$                -100% 6,000$                 20,350$               (14,350)$              -71% 22,200$               
54 Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm 155$                    21,533$               (21,378)$              -99% 276,540$             236,867$             39,673$               17% 258,400$             
55 PTA/Winter Haven Billable Expenses -$                         517$                    (517)$                   -100% -$                         5,683$                 (5,683)$                -100% 6,200$                 

Capital Expenditures 11,014$               56,716$               (45,702)$              -81% 68,643$               623,876$             (555,233)$            680,592$            
TOTAL ELIGIBLE EXPENSES: 748,277$             860,306$             (112,029)$            -13% 7,788,956$          9,463,365$          (1,674,409)$         -18% 10,323,670$        
NET REVENUES OVER

(UNDER)  EXPENSES 2,631,639$          (296,281)$            2,927,920$          2,301,471$          304,030$             1,997,441$          (0)$                       
  

Footnote : Accrued 2 State Grants (SF Corridor, and remaining amount on the Block Grant ($609,135)  & FTA Grant ($2,611,507)

Actual Budget Variance

FY 2016
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Month YTD Approved Annual 
BudgetActual Budget Variance

Aug 2016



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Financial Statement 

Polk County Contract 
Month of August 2016 

 
 
 

      
Revenue 

      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues            
FTA 5307 Grant  $         1,125,545  17%  $     1,031,750   $     1,121,319  109% 
Fares  $            186,661  3%  $        171,106   $        109,673  64% 
PCTS  $         5,245,278  80%  $     4,808,172   $     4,808,172  100% 
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     6,011,028   $     6,039,164  100% 

      
      
      

Expenses 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor  $         3,434,803  52%  $     3,148,569   $     2,188,818  70% 
           
Contract  $            833,783  13%  $        764,301   $        464,692  61% 
            
Operating  $         2,288,898  35%  $     2,098,157   $     1,620,335  77% 
            
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     6,011,027   $     4,273,845  71% 

      
      

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

October 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #3(c) 

Agenda Item: Construction of Park and Ride Facility 

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 

Recommended     
Action:        Recommend Board pre-approve the award of Invitation 

for Bid (IFB) #16-031 for the Construction of a Park and 
Ride Facility to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder 
with a total base price of $784,159, plus an optional 
$121,209 in deductive alternates, allowing for a reduced 
project cost of $662,950. 

Funding Source:  State Discretionary Grant AQH55 for Park and Ride Lot 
Programs. 

Summary:     On September 08, 2016, the District issued an Invitation 
for Bid (IFB) # 16-031, for qualified firms interested in 
providing all aspects of construction, demolition, labor, 
and material necessary to construct a Park and Ride 
Facility. The due date for the IFB was October 11, 2016 
with project completion within 6 months. 

The solicitation was posted on the District’s website, the 
government bidding site, “Demand-star.com”; and various 
construction journals, ensuring the solicitation reached 
over 600 firms. 

The solicitation was provided to the District’s registered 
vendors and state certified Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise (DBE) and/or Minority Business 
Enterprise (MBE). Ninety (90) firms received notification, 
of the posting via email, of which 39% were MBE or DBE 
firms found through the Florida Department of 
Transportation’s DBE Directory/website. 



AGENDA ITEM #3(A) – CONT. 

LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting  

Offers received were publicly opened and evaluated solely 
on price. A responsiveness and responsibility review, for 
the selected firm, is being conducted to ensure the firm 
meets the requirements as outlined in the solicitation prior 
to obtaining award approval from the Department of 
Transportation and posting the District’s Notice of Intent 
to Award. 
 
Based upon the evaluation criteria set forth within the 
solicitation, the District has recommended the firm of 
Leisure Construction to the FDOT for Award of the Park 
and Ride Construction Project.  
 
The District’s solicitation is primarily funded through a 
State Discretionary Grant for Park and Ride Lot Programs. 
The State is funding 100% of the project, up to the 
available balance of Grant AQH55, being $676,176. 
Optional deductive alternates may be accepted as alternate 
funding sources are identified. 
 
Should the District’s Board of Director’s concur, the  
Board will be informed of the FDOT’s acceptance and the 
resulting award during the next board meeting. 
 
 

Attachments:        Contract Award Analysis 
   







LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

October 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(b) 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: August 31, 2016 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2015-16 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(b) 

 
 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of August 31, 2016 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (92%) 

 
 

 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $6.04 million or 100% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown reflects 109% of the budgeted revenues. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $109,000 or 64% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect a 1/12 allocation as cash advance to 

facilitate cash flow with receipt of $4.8 million. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $4.3 million or 77% of the year-to-date 

budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $2.2 million or 70% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $1.6 million or 72% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services is for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other 

planned contractual services. The year-to-date expenses totaled $465,000 or 
61% of the YTD Budget. 

 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Route Changes – Effective January 2017 
 
Presenter: Bill Knieriem, Director of Operations 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational Only 
 
Summary: Power Point Presentation 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



W
IN

T
E

R
 H

A
V

E
N

 N
O

R
T

H
E

A
S

T
 S

ID
E

L
a
ke

 
M

a
rt

h
a

L
a
ke

 
Id

yl

Lucerne Loop

L
u
ce

rn
e
 P

a
rk

 R
d

6
:1

5
6
:2

5
6
:2

8
6
:3

7
6
:4

8
7
:0

5

7
:1

5
7
:2

5
7
:2

8
7
:3

7
7
:4

8
8
:0

5

8
:1

5
8
:2

5
8
:2

8
8
:3

7
8
:4

8
9
:0

5

9
:1

5
9
:2

5
9
:2

8
9
:3

7
9
:4

8
1
0
:0

5

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:2

5
1
0
:2

8
1
0
:3

7
1
0
:4

8
11

:0
5

11
:1

5
11

:2
5

11
:2

8
11

:3
7

11
:4

8
1
2
:0

5

1
2
:1

5
1
2
:2

5
1
2
:2

8
1
2
:3

7
1
2
:4

8
1
:0

5

1
:1

5
1
:2

5
1
:2

8
1
:3

7
1
:4

8
2
:0

5

2
:1

5
2
:2

5
2
:2

8
2
:3

7
2
:4

8
3
:0

5

3
:1

5
3
:2

5
3
:2

8
3
:3

7
3
:4

8
4
:0

5

4
:1

5
4
:2

5
4
:2

8
4
:3

7
4
:4

8
5
:0

5

5
:1

5
5
:2

5
5
:2

8
5
:3

7
5
:4

8
6
:0

5

6
:1

5
6
:2

5
6
:2

8
6
:3

7
6
:4

8
7
:0

5

Depart Winter Haven
Downtown Terminal

Polk State College
Winter Haven

Winter Haven 
Recreational
& Cultural Center

Ave. Y NE. at Wilfred
Smith Community Center

Lucerne Park Rd. &
Lucerne Loop

Arrive Winter Haven
Downtown Terminal

9th St NE

Fairfax Ct NE A
ve

 I
 N

E

A
ve

 I
 N

E

A
ve

 O
 N

W

A
ve

 T
 N

W

L
a
ke

 
S

ilv
e
r

L
a
ke

 
M

a
u
d
e

L
a
ke

 
C

o
n
in

e
L
a
ke

 
S

m
a
rt

L
a
ke

 
R

o
ch

e
lle

L
a
ke

 
F

a
n
n
ie

L
a
ke

 
L
u
ce

rn
e

L
a
ke

 
M

a
rt

h
a

L
a
ke

 
E

lb
e
rt

L
a
ke

 
B

u
ck

e
ye

W
. 
C

e
n
tr

a
l A

ve
.

3rd St NW

A
ve

 F
 N

W

1st St N

A
ve

 K
 N

E

A
ve

 O
 N

E

6th St NE

P
S

C
 A

cc
e
ss

 R
d

1st St N

A
ve

 T
 N

E

Luce
rn

e P
ark

 R
d

A
ve

 Y
 N

E

O
ld

 L
uc

er
ne

 P
ar

k 
Rd

A
ve

 E
 N

W

L
a
ke

 
Id

yl

11th St NE

1st St N

6
0

M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 9
, 
2
0
1
7

R
t 1

2,
 1

5,
 3

0,
 2

2X
W

, 4
0/

44
 a

nd
 5

0

F
ro

m
 W

in
te

r 
H

av
en

 T
er

m
in

al
 to

 W
in

te
r 

H
av

en
 T

er
m

in
al

D
es

de
 la

 T
er

m
in

al
 d

e 
W

in
te

r 
H

av
en

 T
er

m
in

al
 h

ac
ia

 la
 T

er
m

in
al

 d
e 

W
in

te
r 

H
av

en
 T

er
m

in
al



L
A

K
E

L
A

N
D

 / 
W

IN
T

E
R

 H
A

V
E

N
1
2

E
A

S
T

B
O

U
N

D

6
:1

5
6
:4

0
6
:4

3
6
:1

8
6
:2

8
7
:0

5

7
:1

5
7
:4

0
7
:4

3
7
:1

8
7
:2

8
8
:0

5

8
:1

5
8
:4

0
8
:4

3
8
:1

8
8
:2

8
9
:0

5

9
:1

5
9
:4

0
9
:4

3
9
:1

8
9
:2

8
1
0
:0

5

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:4

0
1
0
:4

3
1
0
:1

8
1
0
:2

8
11

:0
5

11
:1

5
11

:4
0

11
:4

3
11

:1
8

11
:2

8
1
2
:0

5

1
2
:1

5
1
2
:4

0
1
2
:4

3
1
2
:1

8
1
2
:2

8
1
:0

5

1
:1

5
1
:4

0
1
:4

3
1
:1

8
1
:2

8
2
:0

5

2
:1

5
2
:4

0
2
:4

3
2
:1

8
2
:2

8
3
:0

5

3
:1

5
3
:4

0
3
:4

3
3
:1

8
3
:2

8
4
:0

5

4
:1

5
4
:4

0
4
:4

3
4
:1

8
4
:2

8
5
:0

5

5
:1

5
5
:4

0
5
:4

3
5
:1

8
5
:2

8
6
:0

5

6
:1

5
6
:4

0
6
:4

3
6
:1

8
6
:2

8
7
:0

5

W
E

S
T

B
O

U
N

D

6
:1

5
6
:4

0
6
:5

8
6
:2

5
6
:3

3
7
:0

5

7
:1

5
7
:4

0
7
:5

8
7
:2

5
7
:3

3
8
:0

5

8
:1

5
8
:4

0
8
:5

8
8
:2

5
8
:3

3
9
:0

5

9
:1

5
9
:4

0
9
:5

8
9
:2

5
9
:3

3
1
0
:0

5

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:4

0
1
0
:5

8
1
0
:2

5
1
0
:3

3
11

:0
5

11
:1

5
11

:4
0

11
:5

8
11

:2
5

11
:3

3
1
2
:0

5

1
2
:1

5
1
2
:4

0
1
2
:5

8
1
2
:2

5
1
2
:3

3
1
:0

5

1
:1

5
1
:4

0
1
:5

8
1
:2

5
1
:3

3
2
:0

5

2
:1

5
2
:4

0
2
:5

8
2
:2

5
2
:3

3
3
:0

5

3
:1

5
3
:4

0
3
:5

8
3
:2

5
3
:3

3
4
:0

5

4
:1

5
4
:4

0
4
:5

8
4
:2

5
4
:3

3
5
:0

5

5
:1

5
5
:4

0
5
:5

8
5
:2

5
5
:3

3
6
:0

5

6
:1

5
6
:4

0
6
:5

8
6
:2

5
6
:3

3
7
:0

5

8
:1

5
8
:4

0
8
:4

3
8
:1

8
8
:2

8
9
:0

5

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:4

0
1
0
:4

3
1
0
:1

8
1
0
:2

8
11

:0
5

1
2
:1

5
1
2
:4

0
1
2
:4

3
1
2
:1

8
1
2
:2

8
1
:0

5

2
:1

5
2
:4

0
2
:4

3
2
:1

8
2
:2

8
3
:0

5

9
:1

5
9
:4

0
9
:5

8
9
:2

5
9
:3

3
1
0
:0

5

11
:1

5
11

:4
0

11
:5

8
11

:2
5

11
:3

3
1
2
:0

5

1
:1

5
1
:4

0
1
:5

8
1
:2

5
1
:3

3
2
:0

5

3
:1

5
3
:4

0
3
:5

8
3
:2

5
3
:3

3
4
:0

5

M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 9
, 
2
0
1
7



A
ve

. 
F

 N
W

N
O

R
T

H
B

O
U

N
D

5
:4

5
5
:5

7
6
:1

5

7
:1

5
7
:2

7
7
:4

5

8
:4

5
8
:5

7
9
:1

5

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:2

7
1
0
:4

5

11
:4

5
11

:5
7

1
2
:1

5

1
:1

5
1
:2

7
1
:4

5

2
:4

5
2
:5

7
3
:1

5

4
:1

5
4
:2

7
4
:4

5

5
:4

5
5
:5

7
6
:1

5

S
O

U
T

H
B

O
U

N
D

6
:2

5
6
:3

7
7
:0

0

7
:5

5
8
:0

7
8
:3

0

9
:2

5
9
:3

7
1
0
:0

0

1
0
:5

5
11

:0
7

11
:3

0

1
2
:2

5
1
2
:3

7
1
:0

0

1
:5

5
2
:0

7
2
:3

0

3
:2

5
3
:3

7
4
:0

0

4
:5

5
5
:0

7
5
:3

0

6
:2

5
6
:3

7
7
:0

0

7
:1

5
7
:2

7
7
:4

5
7
:5

5
8
:0

7
8
:3

0

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:2

7
1
0
:4

5
1
0
:5

5
11

:0
7

11
:3

0

1
:1

5
1
:2

7
1
:4

5
1
:5

5
2
:0

7
2
:3

0

W
IN

T
E

R
 H

A
V

E
N

 / 
H

A
IN

E
S

 C
IT

Y
1
5

M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 9
, 
2
0
1
7

R
t 1

2,
 2

2X
W

, 3
0,

 4
0/

44
 a

nd
 5

0



M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 9
, 
2
0
1
7

C
e
n
tr

a
l A

ve
.

7
:1

5
7
:3

5
7
:5

0
7
:5

5
8
:1

0
7
:2

5
7
:3

0

8
:1

5
8
:3

5
8
:5

0
8
:5

5

1
0
:1

0

8
:2

5
8
:3

0

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:3

5
1
0
:5

0
1
0
:5

5

1
2
:1
0

1
0
:2

5
1
0
:3

0

1
:1
5

1
:3
5

1
:5
0

1
:5
5

2
:1
0

1
:2
5

1
:3
0

3
:1
5

3
:3
5

3
:5
0

3
:5
5

4
:1
0

3
:2
5

3
:3
0

5
:1
5

5
:5
2

5
:5
0

5
:5
5

6
:1
0

5
:2
5

5
:3
0

6
:1

5
6
:3

5
6
:5

0
6
:2

5
6
:3

0E
A
S
T
B
O
U
N
D

6
:5

5
7
:1

0

9
:1

0

9
:1

5
9
:3

5
9
:5

0
9
:5

5
9
:2

5
9
:3

0

11
:1

0

11
:1

5
11

:3
5

11
:5

0
11

:5
5

11
:2

5
11

:3
0

1
:1
0

1
2
:1
5

1
2
:3
5

1
2
:5
0

1
2
:5
5

1
2
:2
5

1
2
:3
0

2
:1
5

2
:3
5

2
:5
0

2
:5
5

3
:1
0

2
:2
5

2
:3
0

4
:1
5

4
:3
5

4
:5
0

4
:5
5

5
:1
0

4
:2
5

4
:3
0

6
:1
5

6
:5
2

6
:5
0

6
:5
5

7
:1
0

6
:2
5

6
:3
0

7
:1

5
7
:3

5
7
:5

0
7
:5

5
8
:1

0
7
:2

5
7
:3

0

8
:1

5
8
:3

5
8
:5

0
8
:5

5

1
0
:1

0

8
:2

5
8
:3

0

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:3

5
1
0
:5

0
1
0
:5

5

1
2
:1
0

1
0
:2

5
1
0
:3

0

1
:1
5

1
:3
5

1
:5
0

1
:5
5

2
:1
0

1
:2
5

1
:3
0

3
:1
5

3
:3
5

3
:5
0

3
:5
5

4
:1
0

3
:2
5

3
:3
0

5
:1
5

5
:5
2

5
:5
0

5
:5
5

6
:1
0

5
:2
5

5
:3
0

6
:1

5
6
:3

5
6
:5

0
6
:2

5
6
:3

0
6
:5

5
7
:1

0

9
:1

0

9
:1

5
9
:3

5
9
:5

0
9
:5

5
9
:2

5
9
:3

0

11
:1

0

11
:1

5
11

:3
5

11
:5

0
11

:5
5

11
:2

5
11

:3
0

1
:1
0

1
2
:1
5

1
2
:3
5

1
2
:5
0

1
2
:5
5

1
2
:2
5

1
2
:3
0

2
:1
5

2
:3
5

2
:5
0

2
:5
5

3
:1
0

2
:2
5

2
:3
0

4
:1
5

4
:3
5

4
:5
0

4
:5
5

5
:1
0

4
:2
5

4
:3
0

6
:1
5

6
:5
2

6
:5
0

6
:5
5

7
:1
0

6
:2
5

6
:3
0W

E
S
T
B
O
U
N
D

8
:1

5
8
:3

5
8
:5

0
8
:5

5
8
:2

5
8
:3

0
9
:1

0

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:3

5
1
0
:5

0
1
0
:5

5
1
0
:2

5
1
0
:3

0
11

:1
0

1
:1
0

1
2
:1
5

1
2
:3
5

1
2
:5
0

1
2
:5
5

1
2
:2
5

1
2
:3
0

1
0
:1

0
9
:1

5
9
:3

5
9
:5

0
9
:5

5
9
:2

5
9
:3

0

1
:1
5

1
:3
5

1
:5
0

1
:5
5

2
:1
0

1
:2
5

1
:3
0

2
:1
5

2
:3
5

2
:5
0

2
:5
5

3
:1
0

2
:2
5

2
:3
0

8
:1

5
8
:3

5
8
:5

0
8
:5

5
8
:2

5
8
:3

0
9
:1

0

1
0
:1

5
1
0
:3

5
1
0
:5

0
1
0
:5

5
1
0
:2

5
1
0
:3

0
11

:1
0

1
:1
5

1
:3
5

1
:5
0

1
:5
5

2
:1
0

1
:2
5

1
:3
0

1
:1
0

1
2
:1
5

1
2
:3
5

1
2
:5
0

1
2
:5
5

1
2
:2
5

1
2
:3
0

1
0
:1

0
9
:1

5
9
:3

5
9
:5

0
9
:5

5
9
:2

5
9
:3

0

2
:1
5

2
:3
5

2
:5
0

2
:5
5

3
:1
0

2
:2
5

2
:3
0

SAT.

SAT. SUN.

SUN.



W
IN

TE
R

 H
AV

EN
 / 

B
A

R
TO

W

1st St S

Av
e.

 A
 S

W

2nd St SW

A
ve

. O
 S

W

22
XW

Av
e.

 E
 N

W

M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 9
, 
2
0
1
7

B
A

R
T

O
W

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
M

E
D

IC
A

L
C

E
N

T
E

R



LA
K

E 
W

A
LE

S 
/ B

A
B

SO
N

 P
A

R
K

 / 
FR

O
ST

PR
O

O
F

3
5

7
:1

5
7
:3

2
7
:3

7
7
:4

5
8
:0

5
7
:2

5
7
:2

9

9
:1

5
9
:3

2
9
:3

7
9
:4

5
1
0
:0

5
9
:2

5
9
:2

9

11
:1

5
11

:3
2

11
:3

7
11

:4
5

1
2
:0
5

11
:2

5
11

:2
9

1
:1
5

1
:3
2

1
:3
7

1
:4
5

2
:0
5

1
:2
5

1
:2
9

3
:1
5

3
:3
2

3
:3
7

3
:4
5

4
:0
5

3
:2
5

3
:2
9

5
:1
5

5
:3
2

5
:3
7

5
:4
5

6
:0
5

5
:2
5

5
:2
9

7
:1

5
7
:3

2
7
:3

7
7
:4

5
8
:0

5
7
:2

5
7
:2

9

9
:1

5
9
:3

2
9
:3

7
9
:4

5
1
0
:0

5
9
:2

5
9
:2

9

1
2
:1
5

1
2
:3
2

1
2
:3
7

1
2
:4
5

1
:0
5

1
2
:2
5

1
2
:2
9

2
:1
5

2
:3
2

2
:3
7

2
:4
5

3
:0
5

2
:2
5

2
:2
9

6
:3

2
6
:3

7
6
:4

0
6
:4

5
7
:0

5

8
:0

5
8
:3

2
8
:3

7
8
:4

0
8
:4

5
9
:0

5
8
:2

5

1
0
:0

5
1
0
:3

2
1
0
:3

7
1
0
:4

0
1
0
:4

5
11

:0
5

1
0
:2

5

1
2
:0
5

1
2
:3
2

1
2
:3
7

1
2
:4
0

1
2
:4
5

1
:0
5

1
2
:2
5

2
:0
5

2
:3
2

2
:3
7

2
:4
0

2
:4
5

3
:0
5

2
:2
5

4
:0
5

4
:3
2

4
:3
7

4
:4
0

4
:4
5

5
:0
5

4
:2
5

6
:0
5

6
:3
2

6
:3
7

6
:4
0

6
:2
5

8
:0

5
8
:3

2
8
:3

7
8
:4

0
8
:4

5
9
:0

5
8
:2

5

1
0
:0

5
1
0
:3

2
1
0
:3

7
1
0
:4

0
1
0
:4

5
11

:0
5

1
0
:2

5

1
:0
5

1
:3
2

1
:3
7

1
:4
0

1
:4
5

2
:0
5

1
:2
5

3
:0
5

3
:3
2

3
:3
7

3
:4
0

3
:4
5

4
:0
5

3
:2
5

6
:4
5

7
:0
5

6
:1

0
6
:2

7
6
:3

2
6
:2

0
6
:2

4M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 9
, 
2
0
1
7



Watson Clinic at
Lakeland Hills Blvd

Depart Lakeland
Downtown Terminal

Watson Clinic at
Lakeland Hills Blvd

Polk County Health
Department

Plantation Square Publix

N Florida Ave & W Robson St

Arrive Lakeland
Downtown Terminal

6:
15

6:
22

6:
30

6:
38

6:
45

6:
52

7:
05

7:
15

7:
22

7:
30

7:
38

7:
45

7:
52

8:
05

8:
15

8:
22

8:
30

8:
38

8:
45

8:
52

9:
05

8:
45

8:
52

9:
00

9:
08

9:
15

9:
22

9:
35

9:
15

9:
22

9:
30

9:
38

9:
45

9:
52

10
:0

5

9:
45

9:
52

10
:0

0
10

:0
8

10
:1

5
10

:2
2

10
:3

5

10
:1

5
10

:2
2

10
:3

0
10

:3
8

10
:4

5
10

:5
2

11
:0

5

10
:4

5
10

:5
2

11
:0

0
11

:0
8

11
:1

5
11

:2
2

11
:3

5

11
:1

5
11

:2
2

11
:3

0
11

:3
8

11
:4

5
11

:5
2

12
:0

5

11
:4

5
11

:5
2

12
:0

0
12

:0
8

12
:1

5
12

:2
2

12
:3

5

12
:1

5
12

:2
2

12
:3

0
12

:3
8

12
:4

5
12

:5
2

1:
05

12
:4

5
12

:5
2

1:
00

1:
08

1:
15

1:
22

1:
35

1:
15

1:
22

1:
30

1:
38

1:
45

1:
52

2:
05

1:
45

1:
52

2:
00

2:
08

2:
15

2:
22

2:
35

2:
15

2:
22

2:
30

2:
38

2:
45

2:
52

3:
05

2:
45

2:
52

3:
00

3:
08

3:
15

3:
22

3:
35

3:
15

3:
22

3:
30

3:
38

3:
45

3:
52

4:
05

4:
15

4:
22

4:
30

4:
38

4:
45

4:
52

5:
05

5:
15

5:
22

5:
30

5:
38

5:
45

5:
52

6:
05

WEEKDAY SCHEDULE

LA
K

EL
A

N
D

 H
IL

LS
 C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 9
, 
2
0
1
7

G
ri
ffi

n
 R

d

L
A

K
E

L
A

N
D

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L 
H

E
A

LT
H

M
E

D
IC

A
L 

C
E

N
T

E
R

Melody Ln



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(a) 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: The Swan Presentation 
 
Presenter: Erin Killebrew, Director of Government & Community  
 Relations 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational Only 
 
Summary: Power Point Presentation 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(b) 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Arts in Transit Presentation 
 
Presenter: Erin Killebrew, Director of Government & Community  
 Relations 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #6(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Safety and Security Report  
 
Presenter: Dean Kirkland-McMillan, Director of Safety & Security  
 
Recommended 
Action: None 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #6(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Authorization to add a position to the Safety Security 
 Department  
 
Presenter: Dean Kirkland-McMillan, Director of Safety & Security  
 
Recommended 
Action:  Approve the position of a Safety Security Specialist 
 
 
Summary:  On September 28, 2015 the LAMTD assumed all the  
   responsibilities of delivering transportation to the   
   residents of Polk County through an agreement with the  
   Board of County Commissioners (BoCC).  With those  
   responsibilities came the Safety security of all transit  
   related employees and activities on the east side of the  
   County. Previously the safety and risk management   
   activities for transit services was provided by the BoCC.  
   With a year of experience of providing Countywide  
   transportation, the Safety and Security department has  
   realized that it’s impossible to provide consistent and  
   compliant safety and security practices with the current  
   staff level.  Staff is requesting approval for one additional 
    safety security person, to ensure we deliver the highest  
   standard of safety and security throughout the county,  
   some of the duties include: 

• Implement safe, secure and consistent practices  
   and procedures in accordance with the District  
   standards 

• Post-accident investigations  
• Post-accident refresher training 

 
Funding of this position will be funded in the County’s budget 
 
 Salary-  $54,000 -$57,000 per year plus fringe benefits totaling   
      $81,000 - $85,500 a year 
 







LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Monthly Activity Calendar  
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director  
 
Recommended 
Action: None 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments:  Activity Calendar  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: UAP & Ridership Updates 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director  
 
Recommended 
Action: None 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments:  UAP & Ridership Report  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



UAP Ridership Totals 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
July 12,983 6,285 19,268

August 14,652 8,054 22,706
UAP Ridership 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
Polk State College

July 2,105                         841                       2,946                    
August 3,213                         1,572                    4,785                    

LEGOLAND
July 294                            1,279                    1,573                    

August 302                            1,589                    1,891                    
South Eastern University

July 140                            26                          166                       
August 157                            41                          198                       

Everest University
July 1,399                         426                       1,825                    

August 32                              9                            41                          
COLTS

July 1,234                         402                       1,636                    
August 1,477                         895                       2,372                    

Veterans
July 3,148                         1,062                    4,210                    

August 3,763                         -                             3,763                    
Southern Technical College

July 405                            535                       940                       
August 269                            443                       712                       

Polk Health Care
July 2,539                         918                       3,457                    

August 2,998                         974                       3,972                    
Central Florida Healthcare

July 1,517                         340                       1,857                    
August 1,785                         372                       2,157                    

New Beginnings High School
July 202                            455                       657                       

August 656                            2,159                    2,815                    















LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(c) 

 
 
Agenda Item: State of the District Presentation 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director  
 
Recommended 
Action: None 
 
Summary: Power Point Presentation 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 12, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #8 

 
 
Agenda Item: Other Business 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	PH AGENDA
	Public Hearing October 2016 Packet
	PH Agenda ITEM 1
	PH Agenda ITEM 2
	PH Agenda ITEM 3

	LAMTD AGENDA
	GEM NOTIFICATION
	ITEM 1 - Appr of Mtg Mins
	9-21-2016 board minutes
	ITEM 2 - Public Comments
	Item 3 (a) - LAMTD Financials
	Aug Financial ReportF
	August FY '16
	YTD

	Board Meeting PCTS
	Agenda Item 3(c) - Park and Ride Award
	Contract Award Analysis
	Item 3 (b) - PCTS Financials
	Item 3 (b) - PCTS Report
	ITEM 4 - January Route Changes
	New RT60WH - Jan9-2017
	New RT12 - Jan9-2017
	New RT15WH - Jan9-2017
	New RT30 - Jan9-2017
	New RT22XW - Jan9-2017
	New RT35 - Jan9-2017
	New RT3 - Jan9-2017
	ITEM 5 (a) - The Swan Presentation
	ITEM 5 (b) - Arts in Transit Presentation
	Item 6 (a) - Safety and Security Report
	Item 6 (b) - Position Approval - Safety Specialist
	Safety Position Backup Info
	Item 7 (a) - Monthly Activity Calendar
	September Monthly Calendar
	Item 7 (b) - UAP & Ridership Report
	Ridership Spreadsheet
	Sheet1

	Ridership graphs
	Item 7 (c) - State of the District Presentationt
	ITEM 8 - Oth Biz

